SANTA BARBARA CITY COLLEGE COLLEGE PLANNING COUNCIL

August 19, 1997

MINUTES

PRESENT: Dr. Peter MacDougall, J. Friedlander, L. Fairly, K. Hanna, C. Hanson, K.

O'Connor, J. Romo, L. Rose, J. Lynn

ABSENT: D. Barthelmess

Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by Jack Friedlander at 3:08 p.m.

Approval of Minutes of July 8

M/S/C To approve the minutes of July 8 as submitted (O'Connor/Rose)

UNANIMOUS

One-Time Resource Requests

Dr. MacDougall was present to report on the decisions made on the One-Time Resource Requests recommended by the College Planning Council. The items in Chart 1 were approved for funding.

Chart 1

One-Time Resource Request Approved	Funds Allocated
Credit Card Registration (Credit and CE)	\$6,200
Alternative Methods for Delivering Instruction	\$40,000
Electronic Applications	\$5,000
Parent-Child Workshop Project	\$10,000
Academic Senate Summer Projects	\$4,240
Cooperative Learning 1	\$20,000
Batting Cage	\$1,300
Assessment of Institutional Effectiveness	\$10,000
Total Allocation	\$96,740.

Chart 2

Action/Possible Alternative Funding
Costs may be absorbed from the Project Redesign implementation costs
The President will work with Dr. Hanson to identify funds for this project.
Funding from College-wide Equipment
Will be handled as part of the Website Project
Will be handled via an FII grant
Will be discussed with Vice President Fairly

Mr. Romo asked about the disposition of the request for upgraoing the phone system at Continuing Education (\$10,000), which he considers an important priority. Dr. MacDougall responded that he and Dr. Hanson would review this request again to possibly identify a funding source.

State Budget

Dr. MacDougall provided an overview and assessment of the state budget. Generally, the budget is very positive although there are still some questions. Highlights from the budget include the following:

◆ COLA & Growth

The cost-of-living adjustment is 2.97% and 3% for growth statewide (SBCC's growth target is 2%).

♦ Instructional Equipment, Technology & Library

Very positive in that there is an increase of \$464,000 to the base. (This is almost 25% of the base needed for equipment.) In addition, the College will receive \$985,212 in a one-time block grant. The lottery could provide 50% more toward the \$1.65 million needed for equipment replacement. The amount needed from ending balances would be reasonable (approximately \$500,000).

♦ Scheduled Maintenance and Special Repairs

This allocation is generous and funds will be allocated based on the districts deferred maintenance plans. Units are urged to contact Dr. Hanson if they have projects which could qualify for funding. (Mr. Romo requested a list of current maintenance projects and accompanying balances. Dr. Hanson will be distributing this information after the final budget is adopted.)

Dr. MacDougall stated that there are other areas in the state budget for which clear directions are lacking:

\$65 million (from Proposition 98 funds) for welfare reform. It is expected that the College will be receiving guidelines in the near future and that grant proposals will be submitted. The deadline for TANF funding is October 10. Allocation of TANF funding will occur with the First Principal Apportionment in early spring.

\$10 million matriculation for non-credit students. John Romo reported that this item came out of a legislative committee and that the intent is unclear at this time. He will contact other community colleges for more information.

\$10 million Economic Development and \$10 million Job Development: More information is needed. Vice Presidents Romo, Fairly and Friedlander were asked to keep alert on funding possibilities.

\$8.7 million for Telecommunications Infrastructure: Bill Hamre will follow up.

\$9.073 million for Student Access Through Innovation: Mrs. Fairly will follow-up.

\$10 million for Child Care: If this is a grant, and not a loan, the College should pursue it.

\$3 million EOPS/CARE Augmentation: Mrs. Fairly will work with her staff to identify funding possibilities. It is assumed the augmentation is directed at program expansion.

Dr. MacDougall stated that the College is particularly gratified at the COLA and the allocation for equipment. This revenue comes at an opportune time for the College.

Budget Items

Dr. Hanson provided an overview of college budget items, beginning with the *Changes to the 1996-97 Adopted Budget for the 1997-98 Adoption Budget*. Total revenue increase is \$2,563,087, including almost 1 million dollars in COLA. Additional expenditures to the 1997-98 budget are \$397,076 prorated growth funds for Salaries; \$1,077,869 prorated growth funds for growth related expenses; \$59,000 health and welfare increases COLA 96-97 (3.6%); \$250,000 1997-98 automatic salary step increases; and \$809,459 proportional share of estimated 1997-98 COLA for salaries (81%). Growth and block grant funding has been excluded from total new revenues pending budget settlement and District capacity to grow. There will be no augmentation to the 4000 and 5000 accounts in 97-98, due primarily to the loss of Basic Skills funding. Additionally, 14% of the COLA was used to offset the deletion of Basic Skills funding.

The Adoption Budget General Fund Summary (Unrestricted Only) shows a TOTAL BEGINNING BALANCE OF \$4,959,67 and TOTAL EXPENDITURES of \$37,549,826. Expenditures against the Other Appropriations for Contingencies Fund (\$545,501) include \$250,000 for Conversion, \$95,000 for One-Time Resource Requests and \$200,000 for Redesign.

Equipment Replacement

Attachment 5 outlined the Equipment Replacement Fund Budget Status for technical and non-technical equipment as of 8/6/97. The budget reflects a beginning balance of \$2,424,839, on-going Instructional Equipment allocation of \$464,150 and a one-time allocation of \$985,212. The block grant and the lottery have been important in augmenting the resources needed to meet college needs. The caveat is that the vice presidents need to determine how much of the \$2,424,839 has already been allocated.

Cost Analysis of Classroom Replacement for the Administration Building and the LSG Remodel

Dr. Hanson presented a preliminary cost analysis to lease/buy temporary buildings for classroom use during the Administration and LSG remodel projects. The costs for 7 classrooms, including dismantling and removal, is approximately \$255,000. In addition, the college is waiting for a response from FEMA to its request to use 7 labs currently located at another community college campus. The only costs associated with temporarily locating the labs at SBCC would be to move the labs from their present location. Where the labs will be placed at SBCC needs to be determined. In the event that the "free" labs are not available from FEMA, Dr. Hanson said that he was prepared to look at other options, including leasing them. The administration remodel will begin in December, 1997 and the LSG remodel is scheduled during the Spring of 1999.

Mr. Romo raised several concerns regarding the proposed classroom and office moves necessitated by the remodel projects. He observed that he had not been involved in any of the discussions on moving the RORC operation. Moreover, he cautioned that moves be planned carefully to ensure

that space was available, that funds are set aside in order to avoid crisis planning, and that staff involved in the moves be provided with as much information as possible. Dr. Hanson emphasized that no decisions had been made with regard to where staff would be located during the remodel projects and that a series of meetings are scheduled to discuss this issue. Mr. Romo commented that the College should also be looking at office space, in addition to classrooms, for the remodels. Dr. Hanson stated that for there would be space available in either the R Building or in the three adjacent buildings, and that he anticipates very little remodeling will be made to the R Buildings.

SBCC Full-Time Faculty Obligation for 1997-98

Dr. Friedlander reported that the College received conflicting documentation from the Chancellor's Office on SBCC's Full-Time Faculty Obligation for 1996-97. Initially, the College's FTFO for 1997 was calculated to be 174.7 and it was on this basis that the College conducted its hiring process last year. On June 12 the College received notice that it's FTFO was 171.7. In effect the College has exceeded its FTFO by 3 FTE. The FTFO for 1998 is established at 176.7. Kathy O'Connor remarked that the State Academic Senate passed a resolution intended to broaden the definition of FTFO by including counselors and librarians. Dr. Friedlander noted that the Governor vetoed proposed legislation allocating funds to increase the number of full-time faculty at community colleges and for staff development.

Update on Process for Database Conversion and Redesign Implementation

In Bill Hamre's absence, Dr. MacDougall provided a update on the Conversion Project Plan which was begun in May of 1997 and will be completed by December of 1998. The attachments provided an overview of the timeline and where the College is in the process. Within the Student Information System component of the conversion, a pilot is being developed for implementation in December and January. In addition to Student Processing activities, the pilot project will involve major processes in Academic Affairs, including catalog management, scheduling, faculty load, hourly payroll, instructor evaluation, facilities management and research.

In response to a query from the Committee, Dr. MacDougall reported that we are about 1.2 million short from the total committed to the Conversion Project (\$2.9 million). In February, the President plans to transfer \$900,000 from the Salary Stability Reserve Account to the Technology Replacement Fund. Dr. MacDougall remarked that the PRELIMINARY PROJECT DEVELOPMENT PLAN demonstrated the positive impact of the Conversion Project on the 26 Redesign Projects planned for 1998-2001. Theoretically, the conversion process will reduce by 50% IRD staffing needed for implementation of the projects.

Lastly, Dr. MacDougall referred to Attachment A, a flow chart of the Delta Systems 2000 evaluation process. He remarked that it is important to understand what the conversion system is expected to achieve and noted that it is being driven by (1) Project Redesign System Projects, (2) IRD Work Order Requests and (3) The College Plan. The Conversion, an extremely ambitious, challenging and complex project, is being coordinated by George Beahan, with the assistance of many staff members, particularly the IRD Staff. The College will be submitting several grants which, if funded, will provide substantial support for the college's redesign projects.

Update on ISAP/ELSP Merger

Mrs. Fairly reported that the Student Affairs staff worked with the Human Resources Department and determined that the new position of Director of International Students is a Classified Management Position 44. With Dr. MacDougall's approval, the position is being advertised. Charles Hanson reviewed the proposed budget. In the interim, a clerk has been hired and Oscar Zavala continues to offer support as needed. The only remaining issue is the number of TLUs allocated to the ELSP Director (ESL Department) which is being discussed with Dr. Friedlander and the ESL Department.

Report on the Results of the Spring 1997 Student Survey

Dr. Friedlander reported that the an executive summary report of the Spring 1997 Student Survey results and recommendations from the Student Success Committee will be published in the College Memorandum and distributed to college staff via email.

The next meeting of CPC is scheduled for Tuesday, September 3 at 3:00 p.m. in A218C.

The meeting was adjourned at 4:45 p.m.

cc: Cabinet, Deans, Assistant Deans, Department Chairs, Academic Senate, Instructor's Association, CSEA, Classified Council, College Information, *The Channels*, Rob Reilly